ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE
April 14, 2003
3:32 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Scott Ogan, Chair

Senat or Thomas Wagoner, Vice Chair
Senat or Ral ph Seeki ns

Senat or Kim El ton

MEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Fred Dyson
Senat or Ben Stevens
Senat or Ceor gi anna Lincoln

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 31

"An Act relating to a railroad utility corridor for extension of

the Alaska Railroad to Canada and to extension of the Al aska

Railroad to connect with the North Anerican railroad system"”
HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BILL NO 151
"An Act relating to the regulation of natural gas pipelines
under the Pipeline Act."

HEARD AND HELD
SENATE BI LL NO. 50
"An Act anending the manner of determning the royalty received
by the state on gas production as it relates to the manufacture
of certain val ue-added products.”

HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
SB 31 - See Transportation mnutes dated 2/11/03 and 3/27/03.

SB 151 - See Labor and Commerce mnutes dated 3/27/03 and
4/ 1/ 03.

SB 50 — See Resources m nutes dated 3/26/03 and 4/ 11/ 03.

W TNESS REG STER

SENATE RES COW TTEE -1- April 14, 2003



M. Richard Schmtz

Staff to Senat or Cowdery

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified for the sponsor of SB 31

M. Pat Ganbl e

Al aska Railroad Corporation

PO Box 107500

Anchor age, AK 99510- 7500

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: ARRC stands ready to nmke the [SB 31
rail road extension] project work

M. Bob Loeffler

Di vision of Land, M ning and Water
Department of Natural Resources
400 W1 | oughby Ave.

Juneau, AK 99801-1724

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 31

Ms. Mary Jackson

Staff to Senator WAagoner

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 151 for the sponsor

M. Ben Schof f mann

Mar at hon G| Conpany

PO Box 196168

Anchor age, AK 99519

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 151

M. Jim Strandberg

Regul at ory Conmi ssi on of Al aska

701 WEighth Ave Ste 300

Anchor age, AK 99501

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: The RCA has no position on SB 151 and does
not believe it will have any fiscal inpact on the agency

M. Mark Myers, Director

Division of Gl and Gas

Departnent of Natural Resources

550 W7th Ave.

Anchor age, AK 99501

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: DNR has no position on SB 151

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 2- April 14, 2003



M. Ant hony Scott

Division of Gl and Gas

Depart ment of Natural Resources

550 W7th Ave.

Anchorage, AK 99501

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to SB 151

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
TAPE 03-28, SIDE A

CHAI R SCOIT OGAN called the Senate Resources Conmittee neeting
to order at 3:32 p.m Senators Wagoner, Seekins, Elton and Chair
Ogan were present. The commttee took a brief at-ease. Upon
reconveni ng, Senator Dyson arrived. The first order of business
to cone before the commttee was SB 31.

#SB31
SB 31- RAI LROAD UTILITY CORRI DOR TO & | N CANADA

MR RICHARD SCHM TZ, staff to Senator Cowlery, gave the
foll owi ng expl anati on of SB 31.

SB 31 allows the Alaska Railroad Corporation (ARRC) to extend
its tracks from Eielsen Air Force Base to the Canadi an border.
It also allows ARRC to explore the possibility of extending its
tracks as far as the North American rail system to connect at
Fort Nelson, British Colunbia. The bill does not provide any
funding for this project but it allows ARRC to pursue financing
wherever possible. The state land for the railroad corridor
would be granted to ARRC, fee sinple title, after a specific
process i s underway.

Former Representative Jeanette James introduced SB 31 | ast year.
It was not enacted because of concerns about the corridor and
the natural gas pipeline. Senator Cowdery reintroduced the
identical bill this year and, during a Senate Transportation
Commttee hearing, a discussion took place with Adm nistration
officials and ARRC officials about the work Governor MirkowsKki
did on the Rails to Resources Act when he was a nenber of the
U.S. Senate. The goal [of the discussion] was to find |anguage
that everyone could agree to that addressed the circunstances
under which ARRC would get land. Sonme of that |anguage was
incorporated into a Senate Transportation Commttee substitute
(CS) beginning on page 2, line 4. That |anguage contains a |ist
of paraneters. He deferred to ARRC staff to explain why those
paraneters were chosen.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 3- April 14, 2003



MR SCHM TZ told nenbers he provided background material for
menbers  that contains tourism and engineering reports,
geol ogical information, and nmaps showing the route from Ei el son
Air Force Base to the Canadian border and to British Col unbia.
The actual gap to be covered equals about 1,000 mles. Governor
Mur kowski and Senator Cowdery believe in order for Alaska's
econony to grow, better transportation is necessary. Railroads
can carry heavy, bulk itens over |ong distances very cheaply.
Senator Cowdery also believes it is inportant to build the rai
connecti on because of the gas pipeline. Trucks will be unable to
ship the steel pipe but rail could. In addition, it mght be
possible to build the railroad and pipeline simultaneously.

MR SCHM TZ told nenbers the railroad corridor covers sone of
the richest mneral land in Alaska and the Yukon Territory. A
geological formation, the Tintina Trench, is particularly rich
in the platinumgroup of netals and gol d.

CHAIR OGAN inforned nenbers that Phyllis Johnson, Wendy
Li ndskoog, Pat Ganble and Janes Blasingane of the Al aska
Rai | road Corporation were available via teleconference to answer
guestions. He then announced that Senators Dyson, Lincoln and
Stevens joined the commttee a while ago. He asked M. Schmtz
to review the <changes made in the Senate Transportation
Conmittee substitute for nenbers.

MR SCHM TZ said the original bill would have given ARRC the
state land via fee sinple title. ARRC wanted a 500-foot corridor
for safety reasons; DNR was concerned about |ocking up that nuch
| and unnecessarily. Al so, sone practical issues arose about a
500-foot corridor in comunities such as Delta. The CS provides
DNR with nore flexibility when the corridor is delineated. ARRC
will have to follow a process to obtain state |and that requires
it to be in a position to begin construction. Therefore, no |and
woul d be transferred unl ess project financing was obtai ned.

CHAIR OGAN asked the width of the current right-of-way on the
existing railroad corridor.

MR. SCHM TZ said he believes it varies from 100 to 500 feet.
MR. PAT GAMBLE, President of the Alaska Railroad Corporation,
informed nenbers that Phyllis Johnson, Bob Loeffler and Joe

Joi ner were also present to answer questions. He told Chair QOgan
the current average right-of-way is 200 feet.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -4- April 14, 2003



CHAI R OGAN asked why ARRC wants so nuch | and.

MR. GAMBLE said that was the nature of the conprom se when ARRC
talked to DNR The state wanted a corridor for transportation,
comuni cati ons and a possi ble pipeline. ARRC wanted an excl usive
right-of-way for control of the rail line, as it has on its
existing rail line. The conpromse was to survey a 500-foot
corridor for the state and within it enbed a 200-foot right-of-
way for the railroad.

CHAI R OGAN commented that SB 31 will give ARRC a 500-foot right-
of-way, the rights of emnent domain, and subsurface rights,
which will have a big inmpact on private |andowners. He asked if
any private | andowners have voi ced an opi nion on this change.

MR. GAMBLE clarified that ARRC will not have subsurface rights.

CHAIR OGAN referred to a provision in SB 31 on page 3, line 26,
that says the state shall convey the state's entire interest in
the I and. He assuned that woul d include subsurface rights.

3:42 p. m

MR. BOB LOEFFLER, Director of the Division of Mning, Land and
Water, DNR, explained that DNR would convey the state's entire
interest except "(a) the interest required by AS 38.05.125",
which is the subsurface interest. So, in fact, DNR would reserve
oil and gas rights and the other things associated with a
m neral estate.

SENATOR ELTON referred to the draft sectional analysis, which
says that DNR will retain any revenues arising from use of the
| and. He assunmed any revenues would also include revenues from
fiber optic cable rights-of-way or other things that generate
revenue for ARRC.

MR. LOEFFLER explained that before the railroad is ready to
construct, DNR will remain as the |land nanager and retain the
revenues. Once the railroad is ready to construct a portion of
the rail line, ARRC will get those revenues within its right-of-
way on that portion. Therefore, DNR will retain the revenues
while it manages the land and, when it transfers the nmnanagenent
authority for each portion, the revenue for that portion wll be
transferred with it.

SENATOR ELTON asked if that includes the subsurface rights.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 5- April 14, 2003



MR. LCEFFLER said DNR will retain the subsurface rights.

SENATOR SEEKINS asked what safety issues mght be involved in
putting a 54-inch high-pressure gas pipeline within 300 feet of
a railroad.

MR. GAMBLE said he is not an expert on the safety radius from
the pipeline but that is one reason a 500-foot corridor was
attractive. He said nore work needs to be done as the entire
route is reviewed to maintain that safety buffer. That m ght
require special engi neering solutions depending on the
t opogr aphy.

CHAI R OGAN poi nted out that |anguage on page 4 reads:

If the [Alaska Railroad] corporation provides a survey
alignnent to the departnent, the departnment my not
authorize construction of the natural gas pipeline
within a 200-foot-wi de corridor centered on the survey
alignment wunless the departnent does not find a
feasi ble and prudent alternative for the route of the
pi pel i ne.

He assuned that |anguage refers to safety issues. He asked how
much of an area a typical train weck covers and whether it is
nore than 200 feet.

MR. GAMBLE said the weckage can cover nore than 200 feet if the
train is noving fast. He said it depends on several factors such
as speed, topography, train length and others.

CHAIR OGAN commented that on a visit to Florida two years ago
he was amazed to see how fast the trains travel through towns.

SENATOR SEEKINS said he assunes the 200-foot railroad corridor
would be on one side or the other of the 500-foot corridor
rather than down the mddle. He asked if that is addressed in
the bill.

MR. LOEFFLER said a 500-foot corridor was chosen for severa

reasons, one to allow ARRC to nove the railroad base around a
little bit when it is ready to begin construction and another to
allow DNR to retain additional |land as a transportation corridor
for other conplenentary uses. After the construction is done,
DNR could adjust the <corridor. Any unusable remants would
probably be turned back to general domain state |and.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 6- April 14, 2003



SENATOR SEEKINS said his concern is that a transportation
corridor that includes a natural gas pipeline will need a safety
buffer.

MR. LCEFFLER said he believes the natural gas pipeline will have
a separate right-of-way. The 500-foot corridor is not expected
to be the only right-of-way for both, but it doesn't rule that
possibility out.

SENATOR LINCOLN referred to the provision about subsurface
rights in the |ast paragraph of page 3, which says, "subject to
the existing valid rights.” She asked whether the state or the
railroad will reserve the valid existing subsurface rights if
private |ands are bought.

MR. LCEFFLER replied DNR cannot convey what it does not own so
the state's conveyance to the railroad will not include any
rights it does not owm. DNR wll reserve the subsurface rights.
Where the subsurface is owned by the state and a corporation
m ght have a surface right, one would assunme they would buy the
surface right. He cannot imagine [the railroad] having a reason
to acquire the subsurface rights unless it is to buy out a
pl acer mner to get that person out of the way.

SENATOR LI NCOLN said she is specifically thinking of the Native
corporations that own surface and subsurface rights. She asked
M. Loeffler if the state or railroad will have no need for the
subsurface rights so would only purchase the surface rights and
| eave the subsurface rights with the private owner.

MR. LOEFFLER said that is his expectation but he deferred to
ARRC representatives to answer for the railroad.

CHAI R OGAN suggested the legislature does not want ARRC to do
any open pit mning underneath the railroad. He then clarified
that the bill is silent on the issue of private property.

SENATOR LINCOLN said that is because it applies to the valid
exi sting rights.

CHAI R OGAN pointed out the subsurface rights were conveyed with
the Native |lands. He asked M. Loeffler whether em nent donain
could be used to claim only the surface rights. He commented
that if he were a private |andowner, he would favor a railroad
crossing his land as it would provide access to that | and.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -7- April 14, 2003



SENATOR ELTON said a couple of phrases, beginning on page 4,
line 20, suggest to himthe bill's first priority is a railroad
and the second priority is a gas pipeline. That |anguage reads:

If the corporation provides a survey alignnment to the
depart nent, t he depart nment may not aut hori ze
construction of the natural gas pipeline within the
200- f oot wi de corridor centered on the survey
alignment.... The departnment shall consult with the
corporation before authorizing construction of a
natural gas pipeline in order to mnimze effects on
the potential rail route....

He said that |anguage could be problematic if the pipeline is
prioritized above a railroad extension, which he favors.

MR. LOEFFLER said [DNR] has not prioritized a railroad above a
gas pipeline and that was not the intent. He hopes that is not
how this section operates. DNR tried to include |anguage to
ensure conplenentary action and avoid a conflict. The bill is
not about the pipeline; it's about the railroad so all |anguage
nodi fies [activities of] the railroad.

MR. LOEFFLER expl ai ned:

Here's how we think it works. If there is an existing
application or right-of-way, that is a valid existing
right that gets dropped from- it doesn't get conveyed
to the railroad. If we've already identified a 500-
foot corridor and a pipeline says, gee, we're really
ready to go through there, then what we say is, well
t he pi peline typically - railroads are nor e
topographically limted. They have trouble going up
hills and things like that than in fact a pipeline. So
what we do is we say, look railroad, we're going to
give you a chance to stake the centerline. You know
where it's nost inportant for you and then we'll nmake
that decision. And we meke that decision in the best
interest of the state and if we can find a feasible
and prudent alternative, and that 1is reasonably
general |anguage, which gives us the flexibility to
take econom cs and the best interest of the state into
account. Qur expectation is not to give a priority to
the railroad, but it does require consultation wth
the railroad. And, of course, the consultation would
go the other way as well with any applicants but this

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 8- April 14, 2003



| anguage was really directed to the railroad. | hope
that answers the question.

SENATOR ELTON said it does. He is hearing that is not DNR s
expectation. He asked if DNR attorneys have |ooked at that
| anguage.

MR. LCEFFLER said they have, but not with that specific question
in mnd. He offered to do that and get back to Senator Elton
with a specific answer.

CHAIR OGAN said he shares that concern and plans to hold the
bill in commttee today.

SENATOR WAGONER said a primary reason given for the need to
build the railroad is that a gas pipeline will be built with 80-
foot sections of pipe. He said he has talked to several of the
maj or conpanies that would be involved in the construction of a
pi peline who say they would use 40-foot sections. They asked
whether a railroad will be built to the North Slope to handle
80-foot sections there. He would like to see a conpany that wl|
build this pipeline verify what length of pipe it wll use. He
surmsed if the pipe can be transported via truck, transporting
the pipe should not be used as justification to build this
railroad.

MR SCHM TZ replied there is no guarantee that 80-foot joints

will be used but, when the pipeline is built, it wll be
conpeting with other natural gas around the world. Using 80-foot
sections will require half the nunmber of welds than 40-foot

sections. That cost savings could make the difference in the
project's feasibility.

SENATOR WAGONER said he is not aware of any conpany that can
roll an 80-foot |ength of pipe right now.

SENATOR SEEKINS said he was in the Interior when the oi

pipeline was built. At that time, 40-foot joints were brought
into Fairbanks by truck in 80-foot Iengths. A trenendous
addi tional cost was associated with the double jointing process,
whi ch al so caused safety concerns. He said he would inmagine a
conpany hired to build 2,000 mles of pipe could find the
technology. He favors a railroad extension for a nunber of
reasons, one being commerce. Al aska should do its best to try to
connect to the Lower 48 states by railroad for comerce,
nati onal defense, and resource developnent. Building an instate

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 9- April 14, 2003



railroad will help but it will not provide the flexibility the
state needs.

CHAI R OGAN commented that the state cannot wait until a railroad
is built to build a gas line.

SENATOR SEEKI NS agreed but said the state needs to nove forward
with the right-of-way and work wth the Canadians to do
i kew se. He said he supports SB 31 regardless of the
rationalizations.

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked if the Canadi an governnent has officially
supported the railroad extension.

MR, SCHM TZ said that sonme of the Yukon comrunities have passed
resol utions in support.

SENATOR DYSON said he visited the Yukon a week ago and found the
Yukoners to be actively in favor. That is one reason |anguage
was added to the bill to nmake sure the Canadian and Al askan
routes cone together. The huge mneral rich trench extends
across the Yukon and British Colunbia borders. If necessary, he
coul d get resolutions from both governnents.

CHAIR OGAN referred to a sentence on page 6, lines 9 through 12:

A corporation may acquire land or interests in land in
Canada as the corporation considers appropriate for
the devel opnent, <construction and operation of an
extension of the Alaska Railroad to connect with the
North Anerican railroad system

He questioned why ARRC would want to acquire interest in land in
Canada.

MR SCHM TZ said when the bill was introduced l|ast year, it
woul d have allowed the extension of the railroad to the Canadi an
bor der and stopped there. Af ter di scussing the issue,

Representative Janes decided to authorize the railroad to | ook
into a further extension using bonds or an appropriation to
purchase land to connect to an existing rail line. He pointed
out the Wite Pass Railroad obtained a right-of-way into the
United States.

CHAI R OGAN asked if Canadian railways own rights-of-way in the
United States and vice versa.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -10- April 14, 2003



MR SCHM TZ said he would imgine so. He said the private
cor porations do.

CHAIR OGAN asked M. Gnble if he supports that |anguage and
anticipates acquiring land and interests in Canada to expand the
rail road.

MR. GAMBLE said he understood that |anguage to offer flexibility
to address the eventuality of having to deal with the other side
of the border in unforeseen ways. However, at this tine, ARRC
has no concrete plans to acquire land in Canada. Representative
Janmes talked to ARRC about the flexibility that |anguage would
provi de and ARRC acknow edges the purpose of that |anguage.

SENATOR SEEKINS said he could envision many reasons the railroad
m ght want to acquire land or interest in land in Canada sinply
in terms of support. ARRC may need to have office space for the
adm nistration of the railroad between Al aska and the Lower 48
states or for housing and warehouse space. He thinks it is wse

to include that |anguage in the bill even though the |egislature
may have to address how ARRC will get funds to acquire that |and
| at er.

CHAI R OGAN asked M. Loeffler if he wished to testify.
MR. LOEFFLER said DNR supports the bill

MR, GAMBLE said, from a strategic point of view, ARRCSs
perspective on the extension from Fairbanks to the Delta area
differs fromits perspective on the extension fromDelta to the
border. The first leg of that extension could provide an
opportunity to look at how to fund the operations and
mai nt enance of the railroad by hooking up to the requirenment to
nove goods and services back and forth from Fairbanks to Delta.
Beyond that, this bill offers the potential to get at the kind
of plan the current adm nistration wants to pursue, in terns of
devel opment. Developnent is within ARRCs mssion so it stands
ready, when the tinme and conditions are right, to nmake this
proj ect worKk.

CHAI R OGAN asked Senator Lincoln if she is aware of the position
of the Native corporations.

SENATOR LI NCOLN said she spoke with several individuals who felt
it was a little premature to comment on this bill wuntil the
project has progressed further - maybe when the actual corridor
route i s discussed.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -11- April 14, 2003



SENATOR ELTON asked if ARRC pays property taxes to the organized
bor oughs t hrough which it passes.

CHAI R OGAN said ARRC i s on governnent property.

SENATOR ELTON said he asked because it has been suggested that a
portion of that area join an organi zed borough.

MR SCHM TZ commented the Arny surveyed a right-of-way in the
1940s for a rail route and a rail corridor from the border to
Fairbanks is in statute. Therefore, regarding questions of
em nent domain and private property, an undefined railroad
ri ght-of -way does exi st.

CHAI R OGAN assuned an environnmental inpact statenment (EI'S) would
have to be done. He then announced he would await an answer from
DNR to Senator Elton's question and planned to nove the bill
fromcomittee on Wednesday. He announced a brief at-ease.

SB 151- REGULATI ON_ OF NATURAL GAS PI PELI NES

M5. MARY JACKSON, staff to Senator Tom Wagoner, sponsor of SB
151, told nenbers this legislation is a housekeepi ng neasure and
provi ded the foll ow ng background.

In 2000, the legislature anended the Al aska Pipeline
Act. In there we stuck in this term 'North Slope

because, at that tinme, that was the only natural gas
pi peline that we ever saw on the horizon. W didn't
anticipate another pipeline to conme along. Since then,
anot her pipeline has cone along and, in fact, it's the
only one that we have and it's on the Kenai Peninsula
- it's the Kenai Kachemak Pipeline - we call it the
KKPL. It was initially going to go from the Kachemak
Bay area back to Kenai. Wat they drilled at the far
end of the Peninsula didn't pan out so it actually now
goes from N nilchik up to the Kenai area.... |It's
bei ng constructed right now and that's why there's an
i rmedi ate effective date on the bill

What happened is they went to the RCA to ask for the
authority to provide for their <carriage in the

pipeline and the RCA said, well, it just says North
Sl ope natural gas pipeline and we're not frankly sure
whet her or not we can do that. So this bill takes out

North Slope and |eaves it natural gas pipeline so it's

SENATE RES COW TTEE -12- April 14, 2003



t hroughout the state of Alaska. And that's why it is a
housekeepi ng neasure. There are people, 1 Dbelieve,
online from Marathon to speak to how they're going to
go about doing it but it's a pretty straightforward
bill.

Regarding the fiscal notes, Ms. JACKSON said the RCA submtted
two zero fiscal not es. The DNR fiscal note anount is
indetermnate; the last line of the analysis explains why, "For
the Kenai Kachemak pipeline these dynamcs are unlikely as only
63 percent of the line's total capacity has been contracted
for."

CHAIR OGAN said he begs to differ that this legislation is
nmerely a housekeeping neasure because the state has common
carrier pipelines. The legislature made an exception for the gas
line to the Lower 48 because the producers would own the
pi peline. He expressed concern that if the legislature shifts
away from a policy of common carrier pipelines, it could have

the unintended consequence of inhibiting devel opnent. He
expl ained that pipeline owers would control who can transport
gas in that line and the open seasons based on when their

devel opnent is planned to cone on line, in effect, elimnating
ot her users and strandi ng gas.

M5. JACKSON said she understands that concern. An alternative
was discussed and that was to specifically nane KKPL in the
| egislation so that it would only apply to the North Slope and
KKPL. She pointed out the length of the KKPL pipeline is 30
mles.

TAPE 03-28, SIDE B

CHAI R OGAN said he has been told there are shallow gas | eases on
the Kenai Peninsula. H's concern is that SB 151 could |ock out
and di scourage ot her devel opnent.

M5. JACKSON referred to minutes froma House Resources Committee
hearing in which M. Schoffmann of Marathon GO tal ked about
support from Aurora Gas, Forest QI and Evergreen, snaller
producers.

CHAI R OGAN not ed he has not heard fromthe smaller producers.

SENATOR ELTON said his understanding is that without this bill
the only conpany allowed to use the pipeline would be Mrathon

SENATE RES COW TTEE -13- April 14, 2003



Gl because it could not <contract to others for firm or
interruptible service.

CHAIR OGAN said his understanding is that if SB 151 does not

pass, the pipeline will be a comon carrier pipeline. In that
case, Iif there is nore gas than the pipeline can carry, the gas
will be prorated. SB 151 would allow conpanies to contract for

space in the pipeline, whether or not that space is used.

SENATOR ELTON asked if the RCA would regulate whose gas is
carried in the common carrier pipeline.

CHAIR OGAN said that is correct.

MR. BEN SCHOFFMANN told nenbers he is enployed by Marathon QO
and is the Vice President of KKPL, which is jointly owned by
Marat hon and Unocal. He told nenbers he provided background
information on this bill to the conmttee [in witing]. He asked
to address sone of the nmenbers' previous questions.

He told nenbers the nodifications proposed to the pipeline act
are to the comon carrier section of that act. SB 151 would
allow, under the common carrier section, a pipeline to offer
both firmand interruptible service. However, that full offering
of service is still under the purview of the RCA. The RCA is
authorized to ensure that the process of accessing that pipeline
is fair and balanced and that no party is favored. In the event
the RCA finds that conpanies are being excluded, it has the
ability to direct the pipeline to expand capacity to nake room
for others who want to ship gas.

Most pipelines in Al aska have been built by producer affiliates.
They have the capital and incentive to do so. Building pipelines
spurs investnent activity by majors and by independents. Aurora
Gas has witten a letter in support of SB 151, part of which
says:

Aurora Gas would not avoid exploring and devel oping
acreage in the vicinity of producer owner pipelines.
However, Aurora can and would substantially discount
the value of exploring and devel opi ng acreage with no
i nfrastructure what soever

He said he believes the pipeline would spur investnents and,

rather than shutting out smaller independents, they seem to say
they wll |l ook for gas where there is infrastructure

SENATE RES COW TTEE -14- April 14, 2003



Furthernore, the RCA has the authority to ensure the process is
executed fairly.

SENATOR SEEKINS said his understanding is that the owner of a

gas field who knows how nuch gas will be produced can get a firm
commtnment to transfer that gas through this pipeline. That is
considered to be non-interruptible gas. However, if the gas

field s potential is wunknown, the owner could contract on an
interruptible basis if there is capacity within the pipeline,
which would give him the opportunity to start producing the
field. If, at a later tinme, he found the paraneters of that
field were great enough to overcone the capacity of this
pi peline, he would have the option of building his own pipeline
or entering into a non-interruptible contract. He asked if his
understanding is correct.

SENATOR WAGONER said that is correct to a point. The carrying
capacity of the pipeline can be increased wth additional
conpr essi on.

SENATOR SEEKINS said that at least allows the owner to get his
product into the market on an interruptible basis. However,
because the pipeline does not have infinite capacity, there
woul d cone a point where he would have to build his own pipeline
if his supply was | arge enough.

CHAI R OGAN asked M. Strandberg if Al aska has any regul ations on
open seasons.

MR. STRANDBERG, Regul atory Conm ssioner of Alaska (RCA), said
the RCA does not currently have a regulation that speaks to the
open season process.

CHAI R OGAN asked if that is by virtue of the fact that pipelines
are either utility or common carrier pipelines.

MR. STRANDBERG said that is correct. Currently two gas pipelines
are in operation in Alaska, the Beluga pipeline and Enstar's
pi peline. Those are both certificated under the public utilities
statute.

CHAI R OGAN asked M. Strandberg if the RCA intends to pronul gate
regulations to regulate open seasons if pipelines offer firm
transportation.

MR. STRANDBERG t hought the RCA has the ability to pronmulgate
regul ations through its own notion or through a petition. He

SENATE RES COW TTEE -15- April 14, 2003



said it is unclear whether the state immediately needs open
season regulations at this tine. However, if pipeline conpanies
see a need for them they could petition the RCA and it would
get involved in a regulation project.

CHAIR OGAN asked if open season is not an issue now because
Al aska does not have any pipelines built that require them

MR. STRANDBERG said that is correct and a lot of it has to do
with the responsibility of the conpany conducting offerings. He
said he believes the RCA considered open seasons on the KKPL
proj ect.

CHAI R OGAN asked if a producer-owned pipeline conpany purchased
all of the available capacity on a line to reserve it for the
future, whether the RCA has the authority to require that
capacity to be released to a party that needs it now.

MR. STRANDBERG said the RCA believes it has that authority under
the existing statute. The RCA regards the proposed contract
carriage statute language to enbed itself in the overriding
common carrier |anguage of the Alaska Pipeline Act. The RCA
believes it has the flexibility, even with these changes, to
regulate in the public interest.

CHAIR OGAN asked if an independent shipper wanted the RCA to
order capacity expansion, but the producer-affiliated pipeline
did not want to expand, which party would have the burden of
proof before the RCA

MR. STRANDBERG said that is a difficult question. The RCA has to
| ook at the specific circunstances to establish where the burden
of proof lies. Some of the considerations are who has the
information, whether the party is a utility that is required to
prove sonething is in the public interest, and who is the noving
party. He noted the RCA enploys sone rules of thunb but it has
to |l ook at each specific case.

CHAI R OGAN asked if the RCA has a position on the bill
MR. STRANDBERG replied, "W take no position other than to note
that there's a zero fiscal note and we feel we can certainly

accommodate the statute changes within our current statute.”

SENATOR LINCOLN referred to the fiscal note from the Departnent
of Community and Economic Developnment and read from the
anal ysi s:

SENATE RES COW TTEE -16- April 14, 2003



There are no fiscal inpacts on RCA for this bill....
However, it is expected that where producers elect to
own and operate a pipeline, which is allowed, the
contract carriage with service under these statutory
terms wll be proposed to RCA in a pipeline tariff
filing.

She asked M. Strandberg to el aborate on that statenent.

MR. STRANDBERG sai d perhaps the "however" is slightly m spl aced.
The RCA does not foresee any fiscal inpact from the bill. A
conpany nay petition the RCA for the contract carriage but that
woul d be considered part of the RCA's nornmal course of business.
The RCA expects that the cost would be absorbed in its current
budget through the regul atory cost charge.

CHAI R OGAN asked why Al aska disallowed contract carriage in the
past .

MR. STRANDBERG said that is a good question. He said he has
| earned from sonme of the corporate nmenory within the RCA the
Pipeline Act and Right-of-Way Leasing Act were passed together
in 1972. The Legislature wanted to establish a policy of equal
and unfettered access to oil and gas in Alaska. At that tineg,
the common carrier nmechani sm appeared to be an excellent vehicle
to use to avoid any discrimnation. He pointed out that act pre-
dates the TransAl aska Pipeline Act. He said he believes, in
terms of the specific circunstances surrounding the need to
assure delivery, a contract carriage approach does not establish
that discrimnation wll occur. He believes offering the choice
of either vehicle that a pipeline conmpany can approach this
under is effective. It is inportant that the RCA consider each
application or proposal for contract carriage in the public
i nterest.

SENATOR ELTON commented that he finds it bothersone that the RCA
does not have a preference and takes no position on the bill. He
said it alnost sounds as though M. Strandberg's argunent is an
argunment for the common carrier approach. He remarked that SB
151 addresses a fairly significant public policy issue.

MR. STRANDBERG said he was attenpting to give the conmttee the
best factual information about possible outcones. He said when
pressed, he would say the RCA does have a position. It feels
these statute changes wll still allow the RCA to protect the
public interest and to accommpbdate and work with the pipeline

SENATE RES COW TTEE -17- April 14, 2003



conpanies to certificate and bring pipelines into operation
under either contract or conmon carri age.

SENATOR SEEKINS asked M. Strandberg if the RCA sees any
downside to the proposed legislation in terns of the public
i nterest.

4:45 p. m

MR. STRANDBERG said he sees no downside to this legislation with
the caveat that the RCA can <continue to discharge its
responsibility to look at each application and its specific
circunstances and determine how that particular application
works within its statute.

SENATOR SEEKINS asked if SB 151 wll help the state get its
resources to nmarket sooner and nore efficiently. He then asked,
if no downside exists in terns of the public interest, what the
upsi de is.

MR. STRANDBERG told nenbers the RCA's mssion is to regulate for
the public interest. Inplicit in that mssion is providing an
environnent to nake the investnent climate as good as possible
and to protect ratepayer interests. He said the dynamcs of a
gas pipeline under the comon carrier portion of the act does
not allow a definite commtnent for the conveyance of gas. As a
commodity, gas is tinme-sensitive. He said he spoke earlier about
the need for having the ability to fulfill a production
contract. He believes the upside of this legislation is that it
Wi ll increase surety for investors in a pipeline. They will know
that a pipeline conpany will be able to conply with the terns of
the contract it signs for the delivery of gas.

SENATOR SEEKINS comrented that the upside to SB 151 is that it
encour ages devel opnent and increases surety for those who put up
the capital to build the line and there is no foreseeable
downsi de.

CHAI R OGAN asked M. Schoffmann to give his presentation.

MR. BEN SCHOFFMANN, Vice-President of KKPL, gave a Power Point
presentation and offered the follow ng highlights.

SB 151 wll provide an additional option to offer firm or
interruptible service. It allows other pipelines to operate
under the sane nethods provided to the North Slope gas Iline

during the 2000 legislative session. SB 151 is consistent wth

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 18- April 14, 2003



policy elsewhere in the United States, where the Federal Energy
Regul at ory Conmi ssion (FERC), since deregul ation, has been very
accustonmed to granting firm and interruptible transportation or
contract carriage. This issue has not arisen in Al aska because
there has not been pipeline construction here.

The difference between firm and interruptible service is as
follows. For firm service, the shipper agrees to pay a nonthly
reservation charge for a set |evel of capacity, which is due and
payabl e whether or not that capacity is used. The pipeline, in
turn, agrees to nmke that capacity available. The shipper only
pays interruptible service if and when the service is used, and
t he pi peline makes best efforts to provide capacity.

MR, SCHOFFMANN told nenbers SB 151 has two inportant benefits.
It will give pipeline investors the opportunity to see the
demand for the services, thereby reducing the risk. It also
hel ps to establish a m ninum | evel of what people are willing to

pay.

Prospective shippers will be able to choose the type of gas
transportation service which best aligns their gas supplies and
custonmer contracts. Gas contracts are typically entered into
between producers and end users on a firm or interruptible
basis. Those with firm gas sales contracts may be nore likely to
want firm transportation and be wlling to pay for that
transportation. Those with interruptible supply contracts would

be nore likely to be biased toward selecting interruptible
transportation services. The key word associated with SB 151 is
"alignment."” It allows conpanies to align gas contracts wth

transportation services.

SB 151 does not change the open access status of pipelines under
the Pipeline Act. He agreed with M. Strandberg that the RCA
will still act in the public interest to nmake sure that
suppliers have access to the system either through open season
or forced expansion. SB 151 wll not have an adverse fiscal
i npact on the state or on snmaller shippers. The snmaller shippers
li ke the idea of building pipelines because they will be assured
that if their exploration efforts are successful, they wll be
able to transport that gas. He told nenbers he is speaking on
behal f of Aurora Gas and Forest OIl. He added that the RCA wll
be looking at individual situations to make sure the smaller
producers do not get |ocked out. Maximzing throughput 1is
advantageous to snmller conpanies. There is no incentive for
them to artificially constrain throughput. He said other
agencies do not seem to have a concern wth producer

SENATE RES COW TTEE -19- April 14, 2003



affiliation. FERC has not prohibited that sort of situation, nor
did the 2000 anendnents to AS 42.06. Two entities have built
pipelines in Alaska: the public utilities (Enstar) and the
producers. Those entities have the capital, resources and
incentives. He believes SB 151 w Il accelerate investnents by
allowing firmand interruptible transportation services.

KKPL's contention is that pipelines are good for business. It

believes SB 151 w Il spur activity. It wll give pipeline
investors nore assurance that their investnents wll be
efficiently utilized and in demand. It wll give the producers

and gas suppliers the assurance that if they have firm gas sale
commtnments, they can transport that gas to narket to neet their
contracts. KKPL has two tentative contracts for firm shipnment of
gas. It would like to offer that service as the pipeline goes
into operation later this year. This is a tinely issue for KKPL
but it believes SB 151 will also encourage pipeline investnent
and devel opnent activities.

CHAI R OGAN asked M. Schoffmann why KKPL needs contract carriage
if it is already a producer and owns the gas it wants to ship on
t he pi peline.

MR. SCHOFFMANN said Marathon and Unocal have formed a separate
pipeline entity, Kenai Kachemak Pipeline (KKPC), whose sole
business is to own and operate this pipeline so it is a stand-
al one business venture that will be regulated by the RCA He
st at ed:

It is in our interest to nmake sure that that pipeline
conpany we created is not a loser of nobney but is
financially viable in its own right. So, we have
attenpted to conduct the open season and set up the
pipeline tariffs treating everyone equally, inviting
ot her people to nom nate gas or book for services, but
the real issue is, because of a variety of reasons, it
made the nost business sense to set up a separate
conpany for this aspect and that conpany would like to
be - have sone financial underpinning to it.

CHAIR OGAN comented that is a noot point if KKPL had an open
season and invited participation but no one el se had gas.

MR, SCHOFFMANN said KKPL anticipated that others m ght have gas.
O hers with |leases had the opportunity to express interest or
make comm tnents. The open season at |east helped KKPL identify
the mnimum size line. KKPL wants to be financially stable but,

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 20- April 14, 2003



in addition, the producers, Marat hon and  Unocal, have
commtments to ship firm gas to various supply contracts. They
want to be assured they have the ability to do so and are
willing to pay for it.

CHAIR OGAN commented that one cannot nomnate gas if there are
no "bookabl e" reserves.

MR. SCHOFFMANN said in this instance, other investnents are tied
to the old developnment program - the N nilchik gas discovery.
MIlions of dollars are being spent. It is incunbent upon the
suppliers to ensure that noney spent wll result in their
ability to ship the gas they believe they are in the process of
proving up and deliver as early as the end of this year.

CHAIR OGAN asked if the KKPL pipeline is contracted for 100
percent capacity at this point.

MR, SCHOFFMANN said it is not. He explained the gas line wll
not come on stream at full capacity. The gas supplies wll ranp
up to a certain level and then begin to decline. At its peak
rate, the anticipated throughput that has been contracted is 90
mllion cubic feet. Under a reasonable operating scenario, that
being the inlet pressure of about 1,050 pounds and the outlet
pressure of about 750 pounds, the gas line capacity would be in
t he nei ghborhood of 120 to 130 million cubic feet per day. On
that basis, at the peak, there will be about 25 percent excess
capacity that is not contracted for. The |line could be expanded
if other supplies are proved up and firmcomm tnents are nade.

CHAIR OGAN asked if the pipeline would be expanded by
conpression or | ooping.

MR, SCHOFFMANN said it would be expanded by conpression or
changing the inlet or outlet conditions. The conpression could
be put at the beginning, mddle or end. Looping would be the
| ast resort but it is possible.

5:03 p. m

SENATOR SEEKI NS noted that M. Schoffrmann said this is a conmpbn
scenario in other states and asked how conmon.

MR. SCHOFFMANN clarified that he said this is commonly used by
FERC in the Lower 48 states. KKPL did |ook at what other gas
produci ng states, notably oklahoma, Texas, and Louisiana, are
doing. They each have slightly different statutory schenmes but

SENATE RES COW TTEE -21- April 14, 2003



they all permt gas to be transported on a firm and
interruptible basis.

SENATOR SEEKINS asked if KKPL is building sonme flexibility into
its pipeline to allow other producers a structured rate process
that may help them get their product on I|ine.

MR, SCHOFFMANN said that is essentially correct with the caveat
that under the common carrier regulations, the RCA is concerned
about two things: making sure the pipeline has enough capacity
to let others in while making sure it is not too big. He
explained the nature of pipeline design being what it is, a
change in pipeline size creates a |large anmpunt of increnental
capacity. He noted that an increase of one dianeter size can
create an increase in capacity of 50 to 100 percent. Pipeline
capacity is the function of a ot of factors, but an increase in
dianeter from8 inches to 12 i nches al nost doubl es the capacity.

SENATOR SEEKI NS asked M. Schoffrmann if anything in the proposed
rate structure in SB 151 would put a potential conpetitor with
ei ther Marathon or Unocal at a di sadvant age.

MR. SCHOFFMANN said he does not see how that would result.
Everyone has been offered the sane two options, firm or
interruptible transportation. The RCA wll be ruling on a
tariff, assumng SB 151 passes, that sets the rates for each
form of transportation. Everyone wll know what those rates are
in advance. The rates wll not discrimnate between producers
and independents. Therefore, WMarathon and Unocal wll have to
contract with KKPL under the sanme exact terns as others.

CHAIR OGAN said that is assumng no one finds nore quantities of
gas than they can ship through the excess capacity.

MR, SCHOFFMANN said at the point extra capacity is needed, there
would be a new RCA rate case to determne the cost, how that
capacity will be provided, and who will pay for it.

CHAI R OGAN said he hopes that happens. He then asked M. Mers
to testify.

MR. MARK MYERS, Director of the Division of Ol and Gas, DNR
told nenbers that Kevin Banks and Anthony Scott were with him
and avail abl e to answer questions.

SENATOR ELTON asked M. Mers if DNR has taken a position on SB
151.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -22- April 14, 2003



MR. MYERS said DNR has taken no position on SB 151.

SENATOR SEEKINS asked M. Mers his view of the downside and
upsi de of SB 151.

MR. MYERS said he believes contract carriage can provide nore
certainty, which helps with financing. The downside is that an
affiliated pipeline may not have the sane notivations as an
i ndependent pipeline. An independent pipeline wll always want
to expand. An affiliated pipeline owner could find itself in a
conpetitive situation for the gas market with a conpany with a
new di scovery. He said affiliation can be an issue but, in this
case, the RCA can conpel expansion, help allocate production,
work out clear rule making and put together rules for conducting
open seasons. The RCA has nore authority than FERC. He said sone
contract carriage pipelines mght be built that would not be
built under common carrier so the infrastructure will be there.
However, one's ability to get into that infrastructure will not
be as clear as it would be in an non-affiliated pipeline that
m ght want to expand. He is not saying that anti-conpetitive
behavior will happen, but there is concern that those who nake
the initial investnent have priority in the market place. He
repeated Al aska has nore protection with the RCA. On the federa
side, the Mnerals Managenent Service has had sonme problens with
access to offshore pipelines. They are nore akin to the Al aska
situation than GCklahoma or Texas, where there are a lot of
conpeting pipelines.

SENATOR SEEKI NS asked, "If this was not an affiliated pipeline,
if this was sinply a comon contract carrier, do you think they
would be looking for the same kind of flexibility that this
pi peline is?"

MR. MYERS said he does. He added that contract carriage is a
"take or pay" contract. He explained in an affiliated producer
built pipeline, the producer has a good idea of the anount of
gas going into the line and understands the narket, and the
pipeline is self financed. However, in the case of soneone el se
going to the market to try to get financing, the fact that
contracts are locked in for a long period of tinme would be
hel pful .

SENATOR SEEKINS asked if it is a good flexibility conponent in

general so, by looking at it as an affiliated pipeline, the
| egi sl ature may be reading nore into it than just seeing this as

SENATE RES COW TTEE -23- April 14, 2003



a common procedure used in other places and a better way to get
gas to market.

TAPE 03-29, SIDE A

MR. MYERS said that is basically correct. He said affiliation
could create a problem when there are no alternatives, but he is
not saying that is the case with KKPL. He said when there is a
single pipeline comng out of a basin and no one knows how nuch
gas is in that basin, there could potentially be nore demand
than that pipeline can deliver and it wll require expansion.
Regardi ng the point of expansion, if the burden of denonstrating
the need not to expand is on the pipeline conpany, that is one
thing. If the burden to show the need to expand is on the
explorer, that places nore risk on the explorer. He said a |ot
depends on how the RCA weighs the evidence as far as nmandating
expansi on.

CHAI R OGAN asked M. Mers if he would suggest clarifying in the
statutes where the burden of proof should fall.

MR. MYERS said he is not qualified to say whether that should be
in the RCA rule making or in statute. He deferred to Anthony
Scott for an answer.

MR. ANTHONY SCOTT, Division of Gl and Gas, DNR told nenbers
that Conm ssioner Strandberg nentioned if the RCA had the
authority to weigh these matters on a case-by-case basis, it
woul d be able to protect the public interest. He said he thinks
rul e maki ng could potentially be quite useful.

CHAI R OGAN referred to DNR s fiscal not e anal ysi s
and quoted the foll ow ng sentence:

Meanwhi | e, contract carriage on a pipeline owed by an
affiliated producer could potentially be wused to
i npede pipeline access for non-affiliated producers.
This could hinder nat ur al gas exploration and
devel opment and ultimately result in a negative fisca
inpact for the State. For the Kenai-Kachemak pipeline,
however, these dynamics are wunlikely, as only 63
percent of the line's total capacity has been
contracted for.

He said he is trying to reconcile that wwth M. Mers' earlier
coment that there could be nore supply than capacity sonetine

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 24- April 14, 2003



in the future. He then asked if the |egislature should consider
narrowing this legislation to this specific pipeline.

MR. MYERS said that is a policy call. He said if the RCA has the
ability to mandate expansion and the burden of proof lies on the
pi peline conpany, he thinks it's okay. He said since this
applies to all pipelines, there is the potential for pipelines
to be built for a specific project with a limted anount of
capacity. The RCA could nandate expansion but explorers would
have to go to the RCA and take the risk they would or would not
succeed. In that case, there is additional risk but there is
still a remedy. He said affiliation is not a huge issue in his
mnd but he had to bring the commttee's attention to the fact
that affiliation could change pipeline behaviors.

CHAI R OGAN announced he would hold the bill in commttee unti
Wednesday. He then announced a brief at-ease.

SB 50- ROYALTY GAS CONTRACTS

CHAIR OGAN announced a commttee substitute (CS) had been
prepared, |abeled Version Q He infornmed nmenbers that a |ot of
commttee nenbers' questions and concerns were addressed in the
CS but a few additional anmendnents need to be considered. He
said because this CS is new, he would hold it in commttee to
give menbers tinme to reviewit.

SENATOR WAGONER noved to adopt Version Q as the working docunent
of the commttee.

CHAIR OGAN announced that wthout objection, Version Q was
adopt ed.

SENATOR WAGONER noved to adopt an amendnent with the follow ng
changes:

On page 2, line 31, change "shall" to "may"
On page 3, line 17, change "and" to "or"
On page 3, line 20, change "and" to "or"

CHAI R OGAN noted wi thout objection, the anmendnment was adopted.

He then said SB 50 woul d be taken up on Wdnesday and adj ourned
the neeting at 5:20 p. m

SENATE RES COW TTEE -25- April 14, 2003



